
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE 

Board of Selectmen Agenda 
February 23, 2023, @ 6:00 PM 

VILLAGE FIRE STATION 
32 North Street 

This is an in-person meeting, but the public may join in Zoom webinar format 
Join by computer or mobile device and click on: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87907047367 
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 879 0704 7367  

By phone 1(929) 205 6099 US 

1. Call to Order.

2. Approve the February 9, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

4. Public Hearing on proposed amendment to Chapter 160-11, unlawful parking, of
the General Ordinances regarding Wharf Lane.

5. Consider the renewal of the special amusement and liquor license submitted by
The Colony Hotel, located at 140 Ocean Ave.

6. Consider the renewal of liquor licenses and special amusement permits submitted
by the Taylormade Hospitality d/b/a Hurricane Restaurant, 29 Dock Square.

7. Presentation by Meagan McDevitt of Woodard & Curran regarding Pier Road
causeway updates.

8. Approve restrictions on vehicle weight limits on certain roads in accordance with
29-A M.R.S.A. Section 2395 and the Kennebunkport Traffic and Parking Control
Ordinance.

9. Presentation of proposed June 2023 ordinance changes.

a. Administrative Code revision regarding Cape Porpoise Pier Committee
members.

b. Administrative Code revision regarding days of annual town meeting.
c. Land Use Ordinance revision regarding accessory dwelling units.
d. Land Use Ordinance revision regarding private road construction.

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87907047367
https://zoom.us/join


e. Land Use Ordinance revision regarding the description of the resource
protection zone.

f. Update to Floodplain Management Ordinance.

10. Personnel Policy correction.

11. Accept $75.00 from Robert and Cathy Gordon towards the emergency fuel fund.

12. Other Business.

13. Approve the February 23, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant.

14. Executive Session per MRSA 1, §405-6C to consider the acquisition of real estate.

15. Adjournment.



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Town of Kennebunkport 
Board of Selectmen Meeting 

February 9, 2023 
6:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Selectmen attending: Edward Hutchins, Allen Daggett, Jon Dykstra, Michael Weston, 
Sheila Matthews-Bull (via Zoom). 

1. Call to Order:
Selectman Hutchins called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.

2. Approve the January 26, 2023, meeting minutes:

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the
January 26, 2023, selectmen meeting minutes. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

3. Public Forum: (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

Zoom attendee Lorrie asked if there was an update on the Village Parcel and new Town
Hall plans. Chairman Hutchins said there was nothing new to bring out to the public at
this time. Town Manager Laurie Smith added that there is a Town Hall Building
Committee that is meeting with the architects to develop a plan that will be brought out
to the public, but there is nothing at this point.

Zoom attendee David James asked about solar-powered speed restriction signs he
believed had been approved by the Selectmen previously. Chairman Hutchins
confirmed the approval, and Laurie Smith added that the signs have been received and
are scheduled to be put out in the Spring.

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken.

4. Consider the renewal liquor license submitted by the W&A Inc. d/b/a Cape Pier
Chowder House, located at 79 Pier Rd:

Selectman Daggett abstained. Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman
Weston, to renew the license. Voted: 4-0-1. Motion passed.

Item 2



February 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 6 

5. Presentation of proposed June 2023 ordinance changes:

a. Administrative Code revision regarding Cape Porpoise Pier Committee
members.

Town Clerk Tracey O’Roak explained that the code currently requires 75%
membership to be Kennebunkport residents. The proposed change is to change
that to be that 75% are commercial fishermen. After discussion by the board, it
was agreed that the term “commercial fishermen” should be defined. Laurie Smith
added that the revised code language would be taken to legal review in March.

b. Administrative Code revision regarding days of annual town meeting.

Tracey explained that some residents had brought forth the proposal to change
the timing of the annual town meeting from Saturday morning to Wednesday night
after the town election. Chairman Hutchins noted that if this change were to be
adopted, it would not go into effect until 2024. Laurie Smith noted that proposed
ordinance changes to the Administrative Code would also need to be reviewed by
the Administrative Code Committee.

c. Land Use Ordinance revision regarding accessory dwelling units.

Town Planner Michelle Radley explained that LD 2003 legislation, which deals with
affordable housing, has a section directly addressing Accessory Dwelling Units
(ADUs). The Town would need to change the Land Use Ordinance (LUO) in
regards to ADUs being permitted uses, meeting minimum square foot
requirements, and being intended as primary residences not eligible for short-term
rental licenses per LD 2003.

d. Land Use Ordinance revision regarding private road construction.

Because of the upcoming purchase of a new, larger ladder truck by the Fire
Department, the current specification of a minimum 16-foot wide travel way on
private roads is being expanded to 20 feet wide. Selectman Dykstra asked what
would be done with existing narrower roads and the new ladder truck. Laurie Smith
stated that Chief Everett could be brought in to answer such questions, but her
understanding was that the Fire Department would make its best effort, perhaps
not bringing hose trucks as far in on the road in certain situations. Selectman



February 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 6 

Daggett requested that Chief Everett come in to speak to the Board about this 
issue. 

Chief Everett was available later in the meeting via Zoom. He answered Selectman 
Dykstra’s question by saying that he would like the change going forward to better 
accommodate the new larger truck by allowing it to turn around in a cul-de-sac or 
hammerhead and not have to back out off a long private road. However, in cases 
of existing private roads, the truck should not be significantly hampered in reaching 
the structure. 

Selectman Daggett asked why a 50-foot right of way, in addition to the 20-foot 
travel path for development with four or more detached dwellings, was requested. 
Chief Everett responded that in situations where hydrants are not available, and 
water has to be brought in by truck, they need room for the 8½-foot wide trucks to 
be able to pass each other. 

e. Land use Ordinance revision regarding the description of the resource
protection zone.

Michelle Radley explained that this change relates to the digital flood insurance
rate map that is likely to be coming out soon and the resource protection zone and
coastal flood plain. With the update would come a significant amount of developed
areas that would fall under resource protection. As this is not the purpose of
resource protection, this change would exempt the already developed areas.
Selectman Dykstra had questions about the size of properties and how they would
be affected. Laurie Smith said she would ask Werner Gilliam to come before the
Board and provide some examples.

f. Update to Floodplain Management Ordinance.

Michelle Radley explained that this was also due to the digital flood insurance
maps changing and updating our LUO to coincide with that. The Town is currently
waiting on the model ordinance from the state, which FEMA would vet. Michelle
anticipates that a section replacement rather than a line-by-line strikeout will be
requested. Chairman Hutchins asked if there was a timeline for receiving the model
ordinance, and Laurie Smith responded that Werner Gilliam is expecting that
sometime in the next few weeks.

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken. 

6. Presentation and adoption of the updated Personnel Policy:

Special Projects Manager & HR Administrator Yanina Nickless informed the Board



February 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 6 

that the Personnel Policy needs to be updated for three reasons: 

1) The current Personnel Policy was created by outgoing Town Manager Larry Mead
and adopted by the Board in 2013. It is now 10 years old and out of date.

2) She has done payroll for a while, so she is familiar with the practical side of
personnel policy, not just theory. So, she knows that some policies became obsolete
and unworkable because of COVID and labor shortages.

3) Union contract negotiations made some articles very divergent and, in some cases,
contradictory to each other. The updated policy is an attempt to mirror them as much
as possible.

Changes were made on three levels – structurally, conceptually, and contextually. 
Structurally, to make the information as easy as possible for employees to find. 
Conceptually, to move away from a set of rules and to include the goals and 
background of Kennebunkport to make this an inclusive, welcoming place to work. 
And contextually, she provided a table to the Selectmen listing the articles that are to 
be changed. 

Yanina, former Finance Manager Denise Brown, and Laurie Smith went through the 
policy article by article and made the changes they deemed necessary. Then they 
submitted the updated policy to the legal team at Drummond Woodsum to make sure 
they were in line with state and federal law. Next, the updated policy was reviewed by 
union representatives, who confirmed that nothing contradicted the union contract. 
Department directors were consulted throughout the process.  

The policy was also submitted to the Board for review and input. There were a few 
changes. The Board was referred to as both Board of Selectmen and Select Board, so 
Yanina made those consistent using the term Select Board only. Other minor 
grammatical and visual changes were made. The most significant change made was 
an item on page 21 – in the event of the death of an employee, the town would pay 
50% of sick leave time. This was changed to 100%. 

The Board members all expressed their appreciation for the hard work that went into 
the policy update and had no further questions or concerns. 

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to adopt the updated 
Personnel Policy. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed. 



February 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 6 

7. Accept $200.00 from an anonymous donor dedicated toward the emergency
food fund.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to accept $200.00
from an anonymous donor dedicated toward the emergency food fund Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed.

8. Accept $600.00 from The Church on the Cape dedicated toward the emergency
fuel fund:

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to accept $600.00
from The Church on the Cape dedicated toward the emergency fuel fund. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed.

9. Other Business:

Laurie Smith reminded citizens that on Friday from 7:00 am to 3:00 pm and Saturday
from 8:00 am to noon, the Public Works Department will be doing their final wood debris
collection days. Kennebunkport residents and those bringing debris from
Kennebunkport properties are eligible.

Chairman Hutchins once again expressed his thanks to the Fire Department for their
efforts during last week’s storm.

10. Approve the February 9, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant:

Motion by Selectman Dykstra, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve the
February 9, 2023, Treasurer’s Warrant. Voted:  5-0. Motion passed.

11. Executive Session per MRSA 1, §405-6C to consider the acquisition of real
estate:

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to enter Executive
Session per MRSA 1, §405-6C to consider the acquisition of real estate. Voted:  5-0.
Motion passed.

Selectmen were in Executive Session for 27 minutes. Remotely attending Selectman
Matthews-Bull did not return from Executive Session.

No motion was necessary. No motion was taken.



February 9, 2023, BOS Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 6 

7. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Daggett, seconded by Selectman Dykstra, to adjourn.
Voted: 4-0. Motion passed. The meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM.

Submitted by,  
Dave Powell, 
Technology Specialist 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



 Town of Kennebunkport  
Public Hearing on  

Proposed Amendment to Chapter 160-11, unlawful parking, 
 of the General Ordinances 

The Town of Kennebunkport Board of Selectmen will conduct a public hearing on 
Thursday, February 23, 2022 at 6:00 PM at the Village Fire Station on the following 
proposed amendment to the Kennebunkport ordinance – Part 1 General Ordinances, 
Article II Traffic and Parking Control, Chapter 160-11, Unlawful Parking. 

The revision of: 

Wharf Lane  No parking on either side of Wharf Lane 

Item 4



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CLERK 

P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine, 04046 • Tel. (207) 967-4243 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Board of Selectmen 

Fr: Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 
Re: Liquor License and Special Amusement Applications 
Dt: February 21, 2023 

We have received the following renewal applications for Liquor License and Special 
Amusement Permits:  

• Taylormade Hospitality d/b/a Hurricane Restaurant, 29 Dock Square

• Broughton Hotel Corp. d/b/a The Colony Hotel, 140 Ocean Avenue

Staff have reviewed the applications and provided approval for this license and 
therefore, I recommend approval. 

Items 5&6





































 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Pier Road Causeway 
Reconstruction
Kennebunkport, Maine
Megan McDevitt P.E.
February 23, 2023

Item 7



Agenda

‣ Roadway Elevation
Comparisons

‣ Revised Roadway Layout
‣ Boat Launch Comparison
‣ Updated Renderings
‣ Questions



Existing Roadway Elevation Comparison
Datum Source NAVD88 Elevation (feet) MLLW Tide (feet)

Mean High Water (MHW) NOAA Station 8418911 4.09 9

Highest Annual Tide (HAT) Maine DEP 6.10 11

Current Pier Road Causeway Lowest Elevation Tidewater Survey 6.50

January 23, 2023 – High Tide NOAA Station 8418911 6.59 11.50

1-year High Water NOAA Station 8418150 6.66

2-year High Water NOAA Station 8418150 7.28

10-year SWEL FEMA FIS 7.44

50-year SWEL FEMA FIS 8.04 13

10-year SWEL + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 8.94

December 23, 2022 Storm – Peak Water Video ~9.00

50-year SWEL + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 9.54 15

Effective FEMA BFE FEMA FIS & FIRM 10.24

10-year SWEL + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.34

Effective FEMA BFE + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.74

50-year SWEL + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.94

Effective FEMA BFE + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS & FIRM, MCC 14.14

NAVD – North American Vertical Datum of 1988
MLLW – Mean Lower Low Water
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency
BFE - Base Flood Elevation for the 1% annual chance storm
SWEL – Stillwater Elevation
MCC - Maine Climate Maine Won’t Wait: Four-Year Plan for Climate Action Plan published December 2020



January 23, 2023 – 1 Hour After High Tide



December 23, 2022 - Storm Event



December 23, 2022 - Storm Event



Datum Source NAVD88 Elevation (feet) MLLW Tide (feet)

Mean High Water (MHW) NOAA Station 8418911 4.09 9

Highest Annual Tide (HAT) Maine DEP 6.10 11

Current Pier Road Causeway Lowest Elevation Tidewater Survey 6.50

January 23, 2023 – High Tide NOAA Station 8418911 6.59 11.50

1-year High Water NOAA Station 8418150 6.66

2-year High Water NOAA Station 8418150 7.28

10-year SWEL FEMA FIS 7.44

50-year SWEL FEMA FIS 8.04 13

10-year SWEL + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 8.94

December 23, 2022 Storm – Peak Water Video ~9.00

50-year SWEL + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 9.54 15

Effective FEMA BFE FEMA FIS & FIRM 10.24

Proposed Pier Road Causeway Lowest Elevation W&C Preliminary Design 11.00

10-year SWEL + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.34

Effective FEMA BFE + 1.5’ of sea level rise by 2050 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.74

50-year SWEL + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS, MCC 11.94

Effective FEMA BFE + 3.9’ of sea level rise by 2100 FEMA FIS & FIRM, MCC 14.14

Proposed Roadway Elevation Comparison

NAVD – North American Vertical Datum of 1988
MLLW – Mean Lower Low Water
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency
BFE - Base Flood Elevation for the 1% annual chance storm
SWEL – Stillwater Elevation
MCC - Maine Climate Maine Won’t Wait: Four-Year Plan for Climate Action Plan published December 2020



Revised Roadway Layout

‣ Reduced sidewalk width to 5 ft on east side
‣ Adjusted top of east and west walls to be constant
‣ Created back-in ramp at the kayak launch (~12% slope, 18‘ width) 

UPLAND EDGE OF WETLANDS

HAT
MHW



Boat Launch – Existing Condition
LIMIT OF 

EXISTING GRAVEL



Boat Launch – Proposed Condition

LIMIT OF 
MODIFIED GRAVEL



Boat Launch – Existing Vs. Proposed Comparison

LIMIT OF 
MODIFIED GRAVEL

LIMIT OF 
EXISTING GRAVEL



Pier Road – Existing Conditions



Pier Road – Proposed Conditions 



Pier Road – Proposed Conditions 
December 23, 2022 Storm Rendering



View From 1 Stone Haven Drive - Existing Condition



View From 1 Stone Haven Drive - Proposed Condition



View From 2 Stone Haven Drive - Existing Condition



View From 2 Stone Haven Drive - Proposed Condition



Thank you



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT WASTEWATER DEPARTMENT

25R School Street, P.O. Box 1038, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-2245 Fax: (207) 967-5372 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith 
Fr: Chris Simeoni, Director of Public Works 
Re: Authorization to post roads 
Dt: February 9th, 2023 

Annually, the Public Works Department posts roads in Kennebunkport to prevent 
heavy vehicles from causing damage to the roadways during the winter to spring 
transition. During this time, roads are subject to additional damage from heavy 
vehicles due to freeze and thaw cycles.  

During the winter/spring, Maine roads weaken, and they need to be protected. As 
temperatures warm and the ground thaws, soil under the pavement becomes 
saturated with water, making pavement unstable. As a result, many roads cannot 
support heavy loads. 

To protect roads from serious damage, The Public Works Department, seasonally, will 
post roads to protect its public infrastructure from damages and pre-mature repairs 
and or improvements. Our roads are posted in accordance with Title 29-A MRSA 
2395. 

The Town does sometimes allow for travel during certain periods of cold weather. This 
will require permission from the Director of Public Works. An application to operate on 
a posted way is available on the Town’s website. 

It is my recommendation to authorize the posting of the attached list of roads in 
accordance with Title 29-A MRSA 2395. The attached list of roads would be closed to 
such traffic commencing on February 27, 2023 and would remain closed until April 
30th, 2023, unless postings are removed earlier at the discretion of the Public Works 
Director. 

Item 8

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/29-a/title29-Asec2395.html
http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/29-a/title29-Asec2395.html
http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/29-a/title29-Asec2395.html


Restricted Vehicle Weight on Posted Roadways 

The Town of Kennebunkport has authorized the closing of certain town ways to any 
non-exempt vehicle or combination of vehicles registered for a gross weight of over 
23,000 pounds. The following roads will be closed to such traffic commencing on 
February 27th, 2023, and will remain closed until April 30th, 2023, unless postings are 
removed earlier at the discretion of the Director of Public Works. Any violation of the 
rules is a traffic infraction punishable by a fine of not less than $250. Home Heating Fuel 
Delivery Trucks and Municipal Solid Waste Collection Trucks are exempt from Posted 
Road regulations. The posting shall remain in force except when the way is solidly 
frozen. The highway is considered solidly frozen only when the air temperature is 32 
degrees F. or below, and no water is showing in the cracks in the road. Both conditions 
must be met. The Town of Kennebunkport will be posting restricted vehicle weight signs 
on the following roads:  

• Arundel Road from Goff Brook to Goose Rocks Road
• River Road from Goff Brook to North Street
• Beachwood Avenue from North Street to Route 9
• Walkers Lane from North Street to Beachwood Avenue
• Old Cape Road from Beachwood Avenue to Route 9
• Goose Rocks Road from Log Cabin Road to Route 9
• Stone Road from Beachwood Avenue to Goose Rocks Road
• Guinea Road from Goose Rocks Road to Biddeford Line
• Whitten Hill Road from Goose Rocks Road to Guinea Road
• Pier Road
• New Biddeford Road from Route 9 to Kings Highway
• Winter Harbor Road from Route 9 to New Biddeford Road
• Dyke Road
• Wildes District Road
• Ocean Avenue
• Arlington Avenue
• Langsford Road
• Ward Road
• Northwood Drive
• Oak Ridge Road
• West Street, Oak Street, Locke Street
• Others, if needed

Please feel free to contact the Highway Department at 967-5728 if you have any 
questions or concerns. An application for a Posted Road Permit is available for 
download on our website. 



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CLERK 

P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine, 04046 • Tel. (207) 967-4243 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Selectmen 
Laurie Smith, Town Manager 

Fr: Tracey O’Roak, Town Clerk 
Re: Proposed ordinance revisions for June Town Meeting 
Dt: January 31, 2023 

We have six ordinances to bring to the voters in June. I have broken down the proposed 
ordinances below. 

1. Administrative Code/Boards and Committees/Cape Porpoise Pier Committee –
this amendment was brought forward by the Cape Porpoise Pier Committee. It
changes the makeup of the committee from 75% of registered voters of
Kennebunkport to 75% of commercial fishermen.

2. Administrative Code/Annual and Special Town Meetings – This was brought
forward by a resident and would change the Annual Town Meeting from the
Saturday immediately following the second Tuesday to the Wednesday evening
immediately following the second Tuesday.

3. Land Use Ordinance/Terminology (regarding Accessory Apartments) – Werner
Gilliam has proposed revisions to clarify the definitions regarding accessory
apartments.

4. Land Use Ordinance/Town-wide Regulations (private road construction) – this
amendment was suggested by Werner Gilliam, Director of Codes and Planning.

5. Land Use Ordinance/Establishment of Zones – this amendment was suggested by
Werner Gilliam, Director of Codes and Planning.

6. Floodplain – Werner Gilliam is waiting on further information regarding this
revision. Once he passes it along, I will forward it.

Item 9



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T,  M A I N E 
~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~ 

MAINE’S FINEST RESORT 

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046  •  Tel: (207) 967-4243  Fax: (207) 967-8470 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager 
Fr: Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning and Development 
CC: Tracey O’Roak, Michelle Radley  
Re: Proposed Ordinance Revisions June 2023 Update 
Dt: February 2nd, 2023 

The staff has been working on several Ordinance proposals for consideration for the 
June 2023 warrant.  In addition to the draft language that has been provided, below, you 
will find a description of those changes. 

1. Land Use Ordinance/Terminology (regarding Accessory Apartments): In response to
the recent state statute modifications surrounding housing (Known as LD2003),
revisions to Kennebunkport’s accessory dwelling unit regulations have been drafted.
Key elements include language confirming that: ADUs cannot be sold, are
recognized as permitted uses, are intended as primary residences, are not eligible
for STR Licenses, meet certain minimum square footage requirements, and are
generally exempt from being required to have any additional parking as required in
LD 2003.

2. Land Use Ordinance/Town-wide Regulations (private road construction): Private
roads that are subject to a Planning Board Site Plan review require input from the
fire department regarding access. Future road designs will need to be able to
accommodate future fire apparatus that the town has contracted for. The proposed
ordinance revisions now have a table to better clarify the dimensional requirements
as well as exhibits for 16’ wide fire apparatus turn around options.  We will also be
adding a 20’ travel way option that our engineering consultants are currently working
on.

3. Land Use Ordinance/Establishment of Zones: Kennebunkport’s Shoreland Zoning
treats many coastal floodplain areas as Resource Protection. With the inclusion of a
significant number of developed properties into the coastal floodplain by virtue of the
new DFIRM maps, the description of the Resource Protection Zone (Intended to
regulate undeveloped areas such as salt marshes) will need to be adjusted to reflect
their developed status. Specific proposed language has been drafted that has been
sent to DEP for their review and feedback.



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T,  M A I N E 
~ INCORPORATED 1653 ~ 

MAINE’S FINEST RESORT 

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046  •  Tel: (207) 967-4243  Fax: (207) 967-8470 

4. Floodplain: In order to remain in good standing with FEMA and to remain a
participant in the National Flood Insurance Program, Kennebunkport will need to
update its Floodplain Management Ordinance. This ordinance is a standalone
ordinance that is heavily based on the model floodplain management ordinance that
is authored by the Maine Floodplain Management Program. It is important for
communities to use this model ordinance primarily because it has been vetted and
approved by FEMA. At this time, the state is working on an updated version that
contains the proper references to our proposed DFIRM (Digital Flood Insurance
Rate Maps). Due to the number of changes that FEMA requires and for ease of
adoption, we will be proposing a complete ordinance replacement vs. a line-by-line
strikeout underline version once that is made available to us.



Part I – General Ordinances 
Chapter 5 – Administrative Code 

Article IV. Boards and Committees 

§ 5-30 Cape Porpoise Pier Committee.
A. A. Composition. The Cape Porpoise Pier Committee shall be composed of

five or more members, one of whom shall be a member of the Board of 
Selectmen. Nonresidents may be appointed to this Committee, provided they 
are commercial fishermen from the Cape Porpoise Pier and at least 75% of the 
membership are registered voters of Kennebunkport Commercial Fishermen. 

B. Definition of Commercial Fisherman. An individual or business entity
deriving greater than 50% of their annual income from activities directly 
concerned with the commercial harvest of wild or aquacultured marine 
organisms. 

BC. Appointment. The Board of Selectmen shall appoint the members of the Cape 
Porpoise Pier Committee.  

CD. Terms. The members of the Cape Porpoise Pier Committee shall serve for
terms of one year.

DE. Organization. The members of the Cape Porpoise Pier Committee shall elect 
annually from its membership a Chair, a Vice Chair and a Secretary.  

EF. Duties. The Cape Porpoise Pier Committee shall advise the Board of 
Selectmen on all matters addressed in the Cape Porpoise Pier Ordinance. 

Item 9a



Part I – General Ordinances 
Chapter 5 – Administrative Code 

Article V. Annual and Special Town Meetings 

§ 5-42 Schedule; fiscal year.
A. The Annual Town Meeting shall convene on the second Tuesday of each June

for the purpose of electing Town officials and for voting on referendum
articles and other secret ballot articles and shall adjourn to the Saturday
Wednesday evening immediately following the second Tuesday of June for the
purpose of considering and adopting the budget and acting upon remaining
business. The terms of those elected Town officials whose terms would have
expired in March on the date of the Annual Town Meeting shall be
automatically extended to the date of the next corresponding Annual Town
Meeting in June. All Annual and Special Town Meetings shall be called in
accordance with the provisions of the statutes of the State of Maine.

B. The Town's fiscal year shall be July 1 through the following June 30,
commencing July 1, 2002, with a six-month interim fiscal and budget year
running from January 1, 2002, through June 30, 2002, to provide for the
change in the fiscal year. In addition, property taxes will be billed on or about
February 1, 2002, to fund the six-month interim budget and thereafter twice a
year with half of the taxes to be billed on or about August 1 and the second
half to be billed on or about February 1.

Item 9b



Part II – Zoning Ordinances 
Chapter 240 – Land Use 

Article 2. Terminology (regarding Accessory Apartments) 

§ 240-2.2 Definitions
In this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

ACCESSORY USE OR STRUCTURE 
A subordinate use or structure customarily incidental to and located on the 
same lot as the principal use or structure, such as a detached garage, 
workshop, or the like. Accessory uses, in the aggregate, shall not subordinate 
the principal use or structure on a lot. A deck or similar extension of the 
principal structure or a garage attached to the principal structure by a roof, or 
a common wall is considered part of the principal structure and may not be 
independently conveyed. 

APARTMENT, ACCESSORY 
A separate dwelling unit which may be located within a single-family 
dwelling, or a detached accessory structure as permitted under § 240-7.1 of 
this chapter. An accessory apartment is an extension of use which may not 
be independently conveyed.  

DWELLING 
Any building or structure or portion thereof containing one or more dwelling 
units, but not including a motel, hotel, inn or similar use. 

A. SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING
A building designed or intended to be used exclusively for residential 
occupancy by one family only and containing only one dwelling unit, 
or one dwelling unit with an accessory apartment as permitted under § 
240-7.1, including a modular home unit.

B. TWO-FAMILY DWELLING
A building designed or remodeled to be used exclusively for 
residential occupancy to two families living independently of one 
another and containing two dwelling units. Each unit shall have not 
less than 650 square feet. 

C. MULTIPLEX DWELLING
A building for residential occupancy by three or more families living 

Item 9c



independently of one another and containing three or more dwelling 
units, including apartment buildings and condominiums, but 
excluding single-family dwellings with accessory apartments. 

DWELLING UNIT 
One or more habitable rooms arranged, designed or intended to be used, or 
used as a complete housekeeping unit for one or more individuals living 
together as a family with independent living, cooking, sleeping, bathing and 
sanitary facilities. Recreational vehicles are not residential dwelling units. 
Within any Shoreland Zone, the term "dwelling unit" shall include seasonal 
rental units which meet the above definition, regardless of the time period 
rented. 



§ 240-4.3 Village Residential Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Animal husbandry 
*See § 240-7.1J

§ 240-4.4 Village Residential East Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Animal husbandry 
*See § 240-7.1J

§ 240-4.5 Dock Square Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment** Child-care center 
*Exceptions to the requirement for Planning Board Site Plan Review Approval are set forth in § 490-10.2B(3).

**See § 490-7.1J.



§ 240-4.6 Riverfront Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 
*See § 240-7.1J.

§ 240-4.7 Cape Arundel Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Home occupation 
*See § 490-7.1J.

§ 240-4.8 Goose Rocks Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 
*See § 490-7.1J.

§ 240-4.9 Cape Porpoise East and Cape Porpoise West Zones

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Home occupation 
*See § 490-7.1J.



§ 240-4.10 Cape Porpoise Square Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 
*See § 490-7.1J.

§ 240-4.11 Free Enterprise Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 
*See § 490-7.1J.

§ 240-4.12 Farm and Forest Zone

Permitted Uses 
Conditional Uses Subject to Site 
Plan Review 

Conditional Uses Subject to 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Review 

Accessory apartment Accessory apartment* Child-care center 
*See § 490-7.1



§ 240-7.1 Accessory apartments

Accessory apartments may only be located in, attached to, or detached from a 
single-family dwelling, shall not be defined as a two-family or a multiplex, are 
allowed as a permitted use in all zones, except where otherwise noted in 
Subsection J D, and are subject to the limitations below: 

A. A request for an accessory apartment requires submittal of a site plan that
shall include the property owner with deed reference, lot boundaries and
dimensions to scale and the location and setbacks of all buildings and parking
areas.

B. A request for an accessory apartment shall include a plan of the entire
building showing a separate floor layout of all finished levels identifying the
use of all rooms and the location of all entrances/exits.

C. The dwelling shall have only one front entrance and all other entrances shall
be either on the side or in the rear of the dwelling. An entrance leading to a
foyer with interior entrances leading from the foyer to the two dwelling units
is permitted.
The living area of the dwelling must be at least 1,625 square feet, including
basement and attic spaces that have a ceiling height greater than seven feet.
The living area of an accessory apartment shall be a minimum of 600 square
feet, and a maximum of 40% of the living area of the dwelling or 800 square
feet, whichever square footage is less. 190 square feet, and a maximum of
800 square feet. An accessory apartment may not have any living space on a
third story unless it meets the minimum life safety requirements as defined
in the Building Code.

D. Accessory apartments are not permitted in the Shoreland Zone unless the lot
on which it will be located has at least double the lot size for that zone,
double the minimum lot size, and double the shore frontage for that zone.

E. Only one accessory apartment shall be permitted per lot single-family
dwelling.

F. Either the primary residence or converted accessory apartment shall be
occupied by the owner of the property as the owner's primary residence An
accessory apartment shall be occupied as a primary residence ("primary
residence" shall be defined as more than six months per year). Both the
primary residence and accessory apartment shall be occupied as primary
residences. When requesting an accessory apartment, the property owner
must provide proof of primary residency, to include possession of a State of



Maine driver's license, current registration of a motor vehicle in Maine, and 
current registration to vote in Maine. If the property owner does not have a 
valid motor vehicle license in Maine or any other political jurisdiction, or 
does not have a motor vehicle currently registered in Maine or any other 
political jurisdiction, alternative evidence of primary residency may be 
accepted subject to the discretion of the Zoning Board of Appeals or the 
Code Enforcement Officer. An accessory apartment is not eligible to operate 
as a short-term rental.  

G. In the Free Enterprise and Farm and Forest Zones only, a home occupation is
allowed in either the primary dwelling or the accessory apartment, but not in
both. Such home occupation shall be subject to approval as a conditional use.
[Amended 11-3-2020]

H. No permit for an accessory apartment shall be legal until the owner files the
following notice with the Code Enforcement Officer and in the Registry of
Deeds: "A permit for an accessory apartment has been issued to the owner of
this property. This permit does not run with the land, and is automatically
invalidated by the sale, grant, devise, conveyance or transfer of this property."

I. G. Accessory apartments located on properties connected to the Town's
wastewater collection system must be approved by the Sewer Department.
Properties utilizing subsurface waste system and private wells must meet the
standards required in the Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. In
addition:

(1) Existing septic systems must be evaluated for condition and capacity
by a licensed site evaluator. A reserve area is required for existing and
new systems in the event that replacement is necessary. Biannual
pump-outs of septic systems servicing the property are required and
documentation must be provided to the Town upon request.

(2) Properties serviced by private wells must provide to the Code
Enforcement Office a water quality test to ensure adequate water
quality prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy.

J. An accessory apartment located in a detached accessory structure that
conforms to property setback requirements is allowed as a permitted use subject
to all requirements below. An accessory apartment constructed within or
detached of an existing structure that is legally nonconforming due to setbacks



is subject to Planning Board review per Article 10. The following requirements 
must be met, in addition to the requirements of Subsections A through I above: 

(1) Calculation of floor area for the detached accessory apartment's living
space is based on 40% of the living space of the primary structure to
include the basement and attic spaces that have a ceiling height
greater than seven feet.

(2) If the primary dwelling is located on a nonconforming lot, at least
50% of the floor area of the detached accessory structure must be
devoted to uses other than living space which are accessory to the
principal structure, such as storage or parking, and must be available
for use by the occupants of the principal structure.

§ 240-6.10 Accessory apartments

A. Each single-family dwelling shall be provided with two off-street parking
spaces. Accessory apartments shall be provided with parking in accordance
with Subsection B(2) below Accessory apartments are not required to have
additional off-street parking.

§ 240-6.19 Dwellings

A. Single-family dwellings. A single-family dwelling and any accessory
apartment located therein shall be constructed on one continuous foundation
and under one continuous roof; no part of the dwelling unit shall be located
in a detached building or structure. Detached accessory apartment units shall
be exempt from this requirement.

§ 240-8.7 Nonconforming lots

A. A nonconforming lot of record, not adjoined by any other lot in common
ownership, may be built upon, as a matter of right for a single-family
dwelling, and permitted accessory uses, and without the need for a variance,
subject to all the requirements of this chapter for the zone where located,
except for those area and frontage requirements which made the lot
nonconforming, provided that the owner can demonstrate that there is
reasonable access to the site by emergency vehicles.



§ 240-11.12 Growth management permit required

C. Exemptions. The following are exempt from the provisions of this section:

1. The repair, replacement, reconstruction or alteration of any existing building
or structure not resulting in additional dwelling units;

2. Housing for the elderly which is constructed, operated, subsidized or funded,
in whole or in part, by an agency of the state or federal government;

3. The construction or alteration of a nonresidential building or structure; and
4. The construction or alteration of a new accessory apartment.



Part II – Zoning Ordinances 
Chapter 240 – Land Use 

Article 6. Town-wide Regulations (private road construction) 

240-6.14 Road Construction, filling and grading.

A. On lots greater than five acres in area, the construction of a road, or grading or
filling of the land may not commence prior to site plan review under Article 10,
unless the planned land use is to serve no more than two residential units, or a
use accessory to an existing single-family home. On lots of five acres or less,
and on any lot when the planned use is to serve no more than two residential
units, or a use accessory to an existing single-family home, such construction,
grading or filling requires a permit from the Code Enforcement Officer.

B. A driveway/private road over 50 feet long for a single-family or two-family
dwelling that the Code Enforcement Officer may permit, shall not be less than
12 feet wide, with a minimum five-foot setback from the lot line.

C. A driveway/private road for a three-unit multiplex, or for three detached
dwellings, must be approved by the Planning Board, and the right-of-way shall
not be less than two rods (which is 33 feet) in width. The traveled way shall not
be less than 16 feet in width of gravel, of hard, durable particles free from
vegetative matter, 16 inches thick after compaction. Drainage swales must have
slopes no steeper than 3:1. The center line of the roadway shall not be more
than three feet off the center line of the right-of-way.

D. A driveway/private road for four or more detached dwellings must be approved
by the Planning Board, and the right-of-way shall not be less than 50 feet in
width. The traveled way shall not be less than 20 feet in width of gravel, of
hard, durable particles free from vegetative matter, 16 inches thick after
compaction. Drainage swales must have slopes no steeper than 3:1. The center
line of the roadway shall not be more than three feet off the center line of the
right-of-way. See Table F and exhibits for dimensions and hammerhead /cul-
de-sac design standards.

E. The Planning Board may reduce or modify the driveway/private road standards
where strict adherence to the limitations cannot be met when considering a
preexisting right-of-way, or cannot be met due to environmental concerns. In
addition, during the course of their review Planning Board may consult with the
Code Enforcement Officer and the Fire Chief regarding emergency equipment 
access requirements for new and expanded existing private roads.  If such a 

Item 9d

https://ecode360.com/33970090#33970090
https://ecode360.com/33970091#33970091
https://ecode360.com/33970092#33970092
https://ecode360.com/33970093#33970093


modification(s) is approved, the Planning Board shall include the 
modification(s) in the site plan review's written findings of fact, and the 
applicant shall record the findings of fact with the York County Registry of 
Deeds before commencing any work or before receiving a building or land use 
activity permit from the Code Enforcement Officer. 

F. 

Table of Dimensional Standards 

Residential Use 
  Minimum 

ROW 

 Minimum 
Travelled 

Width 
Permitting 
Authority 

 Up to: (2) Single family Dwellings or (1) Two Family 
Dwelling 22' 12' CEO 
(3) Detached Dwellings, or 1(3) Unit Multiplex 33' 16' PB 
(4 or more) Detached Dwellings or residential dwelling 
units 50' 20' PB 





Part II – Zoning Ordinances 
Chapter 240 – Land Use 

Article 3. Establishment of Zones 

240-3.3 Description of zone boundaries.

M. Resource Protection Zone: The Resource Protection Zone shall include the
following areas:

(6) Outside of the Dock Square and Riverfront Zones, and excluding all  parcels
which contain upland areas that contain a principal structure/use and
are  considered developed as of July 1 2023 the one-hundred-year floodplains
adjacent to tidal waters and along rivers, as designated on the Federal
Emergency Management Agency's (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Maps or
Flood Hazard Boundary Maps, or the flood of record, or in the absence of
these, by soil types identified as recent floodplain soils

Item 9e



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



T O W N  O F  K E N N E B U N K P O R T, M A I N E 
– INCORPORATED 1653 –

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470 

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen and Laurie Smith 
Fr: Yanina Nickless, Special Projects Manager/HR Administrator 
Re: Correction in the Personnel Policy 
Dt: February 16, 2023  

In the new Personnel Policy, we amended the vacation accrual language in order to 
clarify the Town’s practice. Originally employees used to accrue vacation time on an 
annual basis after a year of service. Several years ago, the Town changed this policy 
and vacation accruals occurred on a weekly basis with payroll. In order to clarify the 
vacation accruals, we added the years of service column in the new Personnel Policy. 
Upon closer examination, we realized it did not align with the Town’s practice or the 
union contract. Thus, the proposed language is 

“Exempt, salaried employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation time in accordance 
with the following schedule:  

YEARS OF SERVICE HOURS PER PAY PERIOD DAYS PER YEAR 
0-1 2 YEAR 1.84 h 12 working days 

1-22-5 YEARS 2.30 h 15 working days 
2-55-10 YEARS 2.77 h 18 working days 

5-1010-15 YEARS 3.07 h 20 working days 
10-1515-20 YEARS 3.38 h 22 working days 
15-2020+ YEARS 3.69 h 24 working days 

The Town Manager may, upon the appointment of an exempt, salaried employee, 
provide for an accrual of vacation time greater than otherwise provided herein, if that 
employee, in the opinion of the Town Manager, has the equivalent work experience 
and qualifications equal to ten years in the job being appointed to. 

Non-exempt, hourly employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation time in accordance 
with the following schedule:  

YEARS OF SERVICE HOURS PER PAY PERIOD DAYS PER YEAR 
0-1 2 YEAR 1.38 h 9 working days 

1-22-5 YEARS 2.00 h 13 working days 
2-55-10 YEARS 2.30 h 15 working days 

5-1010-15 YEARS 2.77 h 18 working days 
10-1515-20 YEARS 3.07 h 20 working days 
15-2020-25 YEARS 3.38 h 22 working days 
20-2525+ YEARS 3.69 h 24 working days 

Item 10



 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
 

AGENDA ITEM DIVIDER 
 

__________________________________ 



Item 11






